
 JENNIFER BERTINO-TARRANT 
WILL COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

KEVIN LYNN 
DIRECTOR 

P. 815-740-4712 
F. 815-740-4604 
E. klynn@willcountyillinois.com 

 

County Office Building 
302 N. Chicago Street 

Joliet, IL 60432 

 

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 

2023-92 Avaya Upgrade 

Addendum #1 – November 9, 2023 

 

 

Please note the following requirements have been removed from this 
RFP: 

• Sunset DS1 card cards, u�lizing direct SIP trunking from local Ribbon SBCs.   

Page 7: 
G: Migrate the following trunk groups using DS1/PRI cards via SONUS/Ribbon SBCs to 
native SIP Trunks via the SBCs, retiring the DS1 cards. 

      COB 302 N Chicago St – Tg-26, ADF 95 S. Chicago St – Tg-49,    
      CTH 100 W Jefferson St – Tg-55/56, WCSC 16911 W Laraway Rd – Tg 58 
NOTE: All current trunking at all locations will remain in place and programmed including the 
associated route patterns. 
 
Page 9: 

• Na�ve SIP trunking migra�on (Item G)” “ 

 

 

We received the following questions regarding this RFP: 

 
Question #1: If the entire project is invoiced by the vendor only upon completion of the 
services, testing and customer acceptance by the County, is a full Performance Bond still 
required? 

 
Answer #1: Yes, a full Performance Bond is required. 
 
Question #2: On page 3, it states that answers to questions will only be sent to those who 
registered at the site visit. I did not see any mention of a site visit.  Please clarify how answers 
will be distributed to Bidders?   

 
Answer #2: Answers will be distributed to all interested parties as well as broadcast online. The 
requirement of a site visit was removed prior to solicitation release. 
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Question #3: What is the address of the secondary ESS described on page 7 under “purpose of 
this RFP”? 

 
Answer #3: 16911 Laraway Rd Ste 100 Joliet IL 60433. 
 
Question #4: On page 7, there’s a requirement to migrate from DS1 to SIP.  Will any new Ribbon 
SBCs be required and if so, will the County procure and install them, or will the vendor be 
tasked to do it? 
a. Is the County ordering the SIP trunks and are they responsible for their installation? 
b. What is the quantity of SIP sessions/licenses that are going to be required with the 
upgrade?  
c. For the network migration, will existing SBCs be used? Do they need to be reconfigured 
and is the vendor required to do it?  
d. Please provide details on the final network design, number of SIP sessions/paths, etc.  
Will there be any analog trunks that the vendor will need to migrate. 

 
Answer #4: This section has been removed from the RFP. 
 
Question #5: For the cutover, can a non-disruptive process be done during business hours? 

 
Answer #5: Affirmative. 
 
Question #6: On page 7, the RFP asks for high availability, co-located Avaya Messaging and then 
on page 9, it mentions this as an option?  Is high availability and co-location a requirement or 
an option?  

 
Answer #6: Co-location is a requirement. High availability is an option as we don’t know what is 
technically feasible. 
 
Question #7: What is the address of the new single G450 that will become part of the system at 
the time of Bid release. (New CAC building 

 
Answer #7: 1206 Cedarwood Crest Hill, IL. 
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Question #8: Should Bidders assume that all user sets will remain in place until post-upgrade 
 

Answer #8: NO TELEPHONE SET REPLACEMENTS ARE PART OF THIS BID 
 
Question #9: Please provide a Display Capacity for each site. This will assist in determining the 
number of programmed sets and an idea of the of the number of sets/locations/site breakout 
will assist with determination of time required for upgrading each location. 

 
Answer #9:  Please see attachment.. 
 
Question #10: Will Customer approve Avaya CAT (Customer Authorization Tool) requests so 
Bidder can acquire existing system records? 

 
Answer #10: Affirmative. 
 
Question #11: In exhibit 4.0, the County uses the acronym “CSR”.  Please clarify what position 
the acronym stands for 

 
Answer #11: Exhibit 7 references Customer Service Representative – Contact. 
 
Question #12: Is your current maintenance billed directly from Avaya for all Hardware and 
Software or is it contracted and billed through a Business Partner? a. If through a Business 
Partner, do you call Avaya directly for trouble assistance or do you call the Business Partner first 
and they are responsible for contacting Avaya when necessary?   

 
Answer #12: Billed through a business partner. We contact Avaya directly. 
 
Question #13: Are there any third-party applications that the County needs integrated to the 
updated solution?  If so, please list and provide manufacturer and current release for each. 

 
Answer #13: Comview- Call Accounting  

        Prognosis – Monitoring  
        NetLert/Nfocus - BCMS 

 
Question #14: Does the County currently have battery backup for the system? If so, please 
provide the make/model/and power. 
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Answer #14: YES, this is not part of the bid. 
 
Question #15: Please provide details on all the trunking currently used.   

 
Answer #15: Details only provided via an Avaya CAT.  ALL CURRENT trunking will remain in 
place.  
 
Question #16: Will the PTP T1’s between the 3 sites continue to be the connectivity after the 
upgrade? If not, will they be replaced with SIP? If so, how many sessions/licenses will be 
required? 

 
Answer #16: PTP T1s are for all voice and data network connectivity to those sites including the 
Avaya survivable Gateways. No trunking changes.  ALL CURRENT trunking will remain in place. 
 
Question #17: Does the County currently operate on a single system between all sites or are 
there separate systems in some locations?  

a. How do the users call each other from site-to-site (how many digits do they 
dial)?  

b. If a user is calling a County phone outside of their local site, does the person dial 
different digits that if the person was calling a person across the room in the 
same area? 

 c. With upgrade, will we duplicate the existing dial plan or modify/integrate it into 
a new dial plan? 

 
Answer #17: Single Enterprise Site – Large. 4 digit dialing across all Avaya gateway sites. Same 
dial plan and all associated programming will be maintained. 
 
Question #18: We noticed that two sites listed different gateways within the RFP. Please verify 
the gateways that are currently installed at: 

a. Animal Control  
b. 158 N Scot  

 
 

Answer #18: Animal Control G350, 158 N Scott G450. 
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Question #19: Page 8 - Regarding the co-located secondary ESS server that provides backup for 
the Avaya voice network, could you please clarify whether you are seeking to implement a new 
ESS at the same location?   

 
Answer #19: Affirmative.  Our intention is to add a separate ESS as a voice backup to the core 
CM at a location that also maintains a survivable G450 gateway. 
 
Question #20: Page 9 - The RFP mentions the retirement of DS1 cards at Chicago, Jefferson, and 
Laraway Rd. Are you looking to remove DS1 cards from these specified locations while keeping 
DS1 cards unchanged at other locations? 

 
Answer #20: Removed section from BID.  ALL CURRENT TRUNKING AT ALL LOCATIONS WILL 
MAINTAINED ALONG WITH ASSOCIATED ROUTE PATTERNS. 
 
Question #21: Are you currently utilizing IVR functionality in your system? Does the new system 
need to be integrated into this IVR? 

 
Answer #21: Negative.  Old IVR was retired. 
 
Question #22: With Will County having CC Elite licenses, would you like to incorporate CMS for 
call reporting? 

 
Answer #22: Negative. Utilizing Netlert cloud service for enhanced BCMS. 
 
Question #23: Are call recording capabilities required for CC agents in this project? 

 
Answer #23: Negative. 
 
Question #24: Page 9 – port network upgrades site upgrades are limited to no more than 1 per 
month.  

• On order to accomplish this, do you an�cipate the new CM10 and the exis�ng CM6 will operate 
in parallel, side by side? (Since G650s are not expected to be supported on Aura 10.2, which will 
be Generally Available in December.) 

• Can mul�ple GXXX gateway sites be converted simultaneously? 
• What is your an�cipated �meline/dura�on for the implementa�on of the en�re upgrade 

project?   
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Answer #24:  
• Hardware migration at the 5 port network sites will be upgraded prior to core CM 
software upgrade. 
• Affirmative, but staggered minimizing business impact. Best practice. 
• 12 months. 
 
Question #25: Page 10 – solutions are to include “pricing options for new and refurbished 
hardware” 

• Are both refurbished and new equipment hardware quotes required, as two separate quotes?   
• Can one quote contain both new and refurbished hardware? 

 
Answer #25: 
• Affirmative 
• Negative 
 
Question #26: Will E-Signatures be accepted, or would that be a disqualification? 

 
Answer #26: A wet signature is required 
 
Question #27: With the changeout to G450’s from the G650’s, do we need to supply media 
modules to cover all available slots that were available on the G650 circuit pack or only enough 
to cover what is being used and any occurring spare after that point? 

 
Answer #27: Maintain 10% spare ports or at least 1 or more open media slots. 
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